
Housing Authority of the City of Columbia, Missouri 
201 Switzler Street, Columbia MO 65203 
Office: (573) 443-2556  Fax: (573) 443-0051  TTY: (800) 735-2966  www.ColumbiaHA.com 
 

Page 1 of 2 

                                                   Open Meeting Notice 
 

CHA Board of Commissioners Meetings 
 

Date: Thursday, May 8, 2025 

Time: 2:00 p.m. 

Place: Columbia Housing Authority, 201 Switzler St. 
 

This will be a virtual meeting held through the Zoom video conferencing application.  Those with 
computers with cameras may join with video and audio.  Those without video access may listen 
and participate by using computer audio or telephone.  To receive an invitation to participate in 
the meeting, send an email request to: dhamilton@columbiaha.com at least four (4) hours prior 
to the start of the meeting. 

 
I. Call to Order/Introductions 

II. Roll Call 

III. Adoption of Agenda 

IV. Approval of Minutes 

V. Commissioner Comment 

VI. Public Comment (Limited to 5 minutes per speaker) 

RESOLUTIONS 

VII. Resolution 2983: Authorizing the Incumbency Certificate of the Housing Authority of the City of 
Columbia for the Park Avenue Apartments project and Associated Partnership Certified 
Resolution of the Housing Authority of the City of Columbia, Missouri Authorizing it to Enter into 
Transactions to Develop the Park Avenue Apartments Project. 

VIII. Resolution 2984: Authorizing the Incumbency Certificate of CHA Affordable Housing 
Development, LLC for the Park Avenue Apartments project and Associated Partnership and 
Associated Limited Liability Company Resolution. 

PUBLIC AND COMMISSIONER COMMENT 

IX. Public Comment (Limited to 5 minutes per speaker) 

X. Adjournment 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 

If you wish to participate in the meeting and require specific accommodations or services related to 
disability, please contact Darcie Hamilton, Director of Affordable Housing Development at (573) 443-2556, 
extension 7035 or TTY Relay 800.735.2966, at least one working day prior to the meeting.  You can also 
contact Ms. Hamilton by email at the following address:  dhamilton@columbiaha.com 
 
Media Contact: Randy Cole, CEO 
Phone: (573) 443-2556 
E-mail:  rcole@columbiaha.com  
A complete agenda packet is available for review at all CHA offices during regular business hours and 
posted on the CHA web site at:  www.ColumbiaHA.com. 

mailto:rcole@columbiaha.com
http://www.columbiaha.com/


Housing Authority of the City of Columbia, Missouri 
201 Switzler Street, Columbia MO 65203 
Office: (573) 443-2556  Fax: (573) 443-0051  TTY: (800) 735-2966  www.ColumbiaHA.com 

 
 
Department Source:  CEO                      
To:  CHA Board of Commissioners  
From:  CEO & Staff  
CHA Board of Commissioners Meeting Date:  May 8, 2025 
Re: Resolution 2983: Authorizing the Incumbency Certificate of the Housing Authority of the City of Columbia for the 
Park Avenue Apartments Project and Associated Partnership Certified Resolution of the Housing Authority of the City of 
Columbia, Missouri Authorizing it to Enter into Transactions to Develop the Park Avenue Apartments Project 
 
 
 
Consideration of this resolution includes authorizing the Incumbency Certificate of the Housing Authority of 
the City of Columbia for the Park Avenue Apartments Project and Associated Partnership Certified Resolution 
of the Housing Authority of the City of Columbia, Missouri Authorizing it to Enter into Transactions to Develop 
the Park Avenue Apartments Project.  These authorizations are required to move forward with closing. 
 
 
 
The proposed resolution includes an incumbency certificate and Associated Partnership Certified Resolution of 
the Housing Authority of the City of Columbia. The incumbency certificate verifies the identities and positions 
of the CHA Board and staff and confirms their authority to act on behalf of each organization and execute the 
appropriate documents. The certified resolution of the Housing Authority of the City of Columbia, Missouri 
authorizes it to enter transactions to develop the Park Avenue Apartments and outlines the following entities 
as part of the transaction:  
 

• Park Avenue Housing Development Group, LP, a Missouri limited partnership (the “Partnership”) 
• Park Avenue Housing GP, LLC, a Missouri limited liability company (“Park Avenue Housing GP” or 

“General Partner”) 
• CHA Affordable Housing Development, LLC, a Missouri limited liability company (the “Developer”) 

 
The resolution affirms the Housing Authority serving as the sole member (the “Member”) of the Developer of 
the Project, and the execution of associated documents.  It also authorizes the sale of the land from CHA to 
the partnership, associated financing. The resolution also authorizes the Columbia Housing Authority to obtain 
construction financing and long-term financing.  Finally, the resolution authorizes CHA’s Board Chair and Chief 
Executive Officer to sign off on associated documents. 
 
These documents are required to allow CHA to complete a “Dry Closing” within the month of May to allow for 
the Equity Partner, Red Stone to meet their closing deadline of June 30, 2025. This deadline relates to their 
investment funds for the Park Avenue Apartments Project. A dry closing executes the partnership documents 
but does not release funding related to the project. The financial closing with release of funding is planned for 
June of 2025 following successful formal approval of the RAD Conversion package under review by HUD and 
any additional related due diligence items as required by additional funders.   
 
 
 

Executive Summary 

Discussion 



Housing Authority of the City of Columbia, Missouri 
201 Switzler Street, Columbia MO 65203 
Office: (573) 443-2556  Fax: (573) 443-0051  TTY: (800) 735-2966  www.ColumbiaHA.com 

 
 

 
  
Approve the Certified Resolution of the Housing Authority of the City of Columbia, Missouri authorizing it to 
complete the incumbency certificate on behalf of CHA and to enter into transactions to develop the Park 
Avenue Apartments project.          

Recommended Commission Action 



Incumbency Certificate – HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA, MISSOURI 

CERTIFICATE FOR 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA, MISSOURI 

MAY 8, 2025 

I, the undersigned, RANDALL COLE, do hereby certify as follows: 

1. I am the CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER of the HOUSING AUTHORITY
OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA, MISSOURI, a Missouri municipal corporation 
(“Housing Authority”).  

2. Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a true, correct, and complete copy of the
action by written consent adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing 
Authority, dated as of May 8, 2025 (“Consent”). The Consent has not been amended or 
revoked and is now in full force and effect. 

3. The Housing Authority is duly organized and validly existing as a municipal
corporation. 

4. Attached hereto as Exhibit B is a true and complete copy of the ordinance
establishing the Housing Authority, which has not been amended to date. 

5. Attached hereto as Exhibit C is a true and correct copy of the By-laws of
the Housing Authority in effect as of the date hereof. 

6. Each person named in Exhibit D is a duly appointed person authorized to
sign on behalf of the Housing Authority, and the signature set forth opposite his or her 
name on Exhibit D is his or her genuine signature. Said person is authorized to act on behalf 
of the Housing Authority. 

7. The following individuals comprise the Board of Commissioners of the
Housing Authority:  Robin Wenneker; Bob Hutton; Rigel Oliveri; and Steve Calloway. 

8. This certificate is delivered to Nationwide Affordable Housing Fund 66 –
Red Stone Equity Fund – 100, LP, a Delaware limited partnership, Red Stone Equity 
Manager LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Affordable Housing Fund III-H LLC, 
a Missouri limited liability company, Applegate & Thorne-Thomsen, P.C., Housing 
Authority of the City of Columbia, Missouri, Missouri Housing Development 
Commission, Legacy Bank & Trust Company, Polsinelli, P.C., Rosenblum Goldenhersh, 
P.C., and First American Title Insurance Company (collectively, the “Reliance Parties”).
The Reliance Parties and their respective members, managers, partners, officers, directors,
successors, and assigns are entitled to rely on this certificate.

Resolution 2983



Incumbency Certificate – HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA, MISSOURI 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Certificate for the 
Partnership as of the date set forth above. 

 

     
            RANDALL COLE 

  
   



Incumbency Certificate – HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA, MISSOURI 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Resolutions 
 

[SEE ATTACHED] 

  



Incumbency Certificate – HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA, MISSOURI 

CERTIFIED RESOLUTION OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 
COLUMBIA, MISSOURI AUTHORIZING IT TO ENTER INTO TRANSACTIONS TO 

DEVELOP THE PARK AVENUE APARTMENTS PROJECT  
 

On May 8, 2025, at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) of the Housing 
Authority of the City of Columbia, Missouri, a Missouri municipal corporation (the “Housing 
Authority”) at which a quorum was in attendance, acting pursuant to its Bylaws and Chapter 99 of 
the Revised Statutes of Missouri (the “Act”), the following resolutions were adopted: 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has heretofore submitted a development proposal and application for 
federal and state low-income housing tax credits (“Tax Credits”) to the Missouri Housing 
Development Commission (“MHDC”), to build Park Avenue Apartments (hereinafter referred to 
as the “Project”) which has been approved by MHDC; 
 
WHEREAS, the Project will be owned by Park Avenue Housing Development Group, LP, a 
Missouri limited partnership (the “Partnership”); 
 
WHEREAS, the general partner of the Partnership is Park Avenue Housing GP, LLC, a Missouri 
limited liability company (“Park Avenue Housing GP” or “General Partner”);  
 
WHEREAS, the Project will be developed by CHA Affordable Housing Development, LLC (the 
“Developer”) or its affiliate; 
  
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority desires to participate in the development of the Project by 
serving as the sole member (the “Member”) of the Developer of the Project; 
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority desires to sell certain real estate to the Partnership on which 
the Partnership will develop the Project; 
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority, pursuant to the Act, has the power to prepare, develop, carry 
out, acquire, lease and operate the housing project; to obtain financing, provide for the demolition, 
construction, reconstruction, improvement, alteration or repair of any housing project or any part 
thereof; 
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority will be required to execute certain contracts, records, 
instruments, agreements, notices, and other documents necessary or appropriate to evidence, 
effectuate, and consummate certain transactions undertaken for the purpose of developing the 
Project including the acquiring, developing, constructing, and financing of the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority will be required to provide certain guarantees to the limited 
partners related to the tax credit transactions, including the guarantees for construction completion, 
tax credit delivery, operating deficits, and other documents related to required guarantees. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of the Housing Authority authorizes 
the Housing Authority to serve as the sole member of the Developer. 
 



Incumbency Certificate – HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA, MISSOURI 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Housing Authority shall sell property on which the 
Project will be developed, in Columbia, Missouri, for $1,000,000, and in connection therewith, 
provide seller-financing to the Partnership for the entire purchase price; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Housing Authority shall provide additional debt 
financing for the Project in the amount of $300,000; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Housing Authority shall use $5,000,000 in American 
Rescue Plan Act funding from Boone County, Missouri to make a $5,000,000 loan to the 
Partnership, which such loan shall be used to finance the development of the Project. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Housing Authority is authorized and directed to execute 
any and all commercially reasonable guarantees or environmental indemnification agreements 
required by Legacy Bank & Trust Company in connection with the construction financing for the 
Project. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that either the Chief Executive Officer or the Chair of the Board, 
are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Housing Authority, to enter into, execute and deliver all 
documents, instruments, agreements, including but not limited to that certain Guaranty Agreement 
in favor of Nationwide Affordable Housing Fund 66 – Red Stone Equity Fund – 100, LP, Red 
Stone Equity Manager LLC, and Affordable Housing Fund III-H LLC, limited partners providing 
equity financing for the development of the Project, effective as of May 1, 2025, and any and all 
notices necessary or appropriate to evidence, effectuate and consummate certain transactions 
undertaken for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, developing, securing the financing and 
maintaining of the Project. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following officers are duly appointed and currently act 
as authorized signatories of the Housing Authority in the following capacity: 
  
  Randall Cole                         Chief Executive Officer of the Housing Authority 
  Bob Hutton                             Chair of the Board of the Housing Authority 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that either Randall Cole as the Chief Executive Officer (“Chief 
Executive Officer”) or Bob Hutton as the Chair of the Board (“Chair”), are hereby authorized to 
sign for the Housing Authority and to take such other actions as either of them deems necessary 
and/or desirable in connection with all matters relating, directly or indirectly, to the development 
of the Project and to carry out these Resolutions. 
 
FINALLY RESOLVED, that these Resolutions have not been amended, repealed, or modified.  
 



Incumbency Certificate – HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA, MISSOURI 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and the seal of the Housing Authority 
of the City of Columbia, Missouri as of May 8, 2025. 
 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE  
CITY OF COLUMBIA, MISSOURI,  
a Missouri municipal corporation 
 
By: ___________________________________________    

Bob Hutton, Chair 
 
By: ___________________________________________    

Randall Cole, Secretary 



Incumbency Certificate – HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA, MISSOURI 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Ordinance 

[SEE ATTACHED]



Incumbency Certificate – HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA, MISSOURI 

EXHIBIT C 

By-laws 
 

[SEE ATTACHED] 
 

 

 



Incumbency Certificate – HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA, MISSOURI 

EXHIBIT D 

Incumbent Office Signature 

BOB HUTTON Chair of the Board of 
Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority 

___________________ 

ROBIN WENNEKER Vice-Chair of the Board of 
Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority 

___________________ 

RANDALL COLE Chief Executive Officer of the 
Housing Authority 

___________________ 

 
4927-1164-5752, v. 3 
4927-1164-5752, v. 3 
4927-1164-5752, v. 3 







 

CHA Bylaws Page 1 

Columbia 
Housing Authority 

Housing Authority of the City of Columbia, Missouri 
201 Switzler Street, Columbia, MO  65203 
Office: 573.443.2556 ♦ TTY Relay 800.735.2966 ♦ Fax: 573.443.0051 ♦ www.ColumbiaHA.com 

 
BY-LAWS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY 
OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA, MISSOURI 

 
REVISED  APRIL 21, 2015 

 
ARTICLE I – THE AUTHORITY 

 

 Section 1.   Name of Authority.  The name of the Authority shall be “Housing Authority of the 
City of Columbia, Missouri”. 
 
 Section 2.   Seal of Authority.  The seal of the Authority shall be in the form of a circle and 
shall bear the name of the Authority.  The seal shall also have in its center the numerals 1956, which is 
the year of organization of the Authority. 
 
 Section 3.   Office of the Authority.  The offices of the Authority shall be at such place or 
places in the City of Columbia, Missouri, as the Authority may from time to time designate. 
 
 Section 4.   Governance of the Authority.  The Authority shall be governed by a five member 
Board of Commissioners who will elect officers. 
 

ARTICLE II – OFFICERS 
 
 Section 1.   Officers.  The officers of the Authority shall be a Chair, a Vice-Chair, and Secretary 
who shall be the Chief Executive Officer. 
 
 Section 2.   Chair.  The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Authority.  Except as 
otherwise authorized by Resolution of the Authority, the Chair shall sign all contracts, deeds and other 
instruments made by the Authority.  At each meeting the Chair shall submit such recommendations and 
information, as he/she may consider proper concerning the business, affairs, and policies of the 
Authority. 
 
 Section 3.   Vice-Chair.  The Vice-Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair in the absence or 
incapacity of the Chair, and in the case of the resignation or death of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall 
perform the duties imposed on the Chair until such time as the Board of Commissioners shall elect a 
new Chair. 
 
 Section 4.   Secretary.  The Secretary shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Authority and, 
as such, shall have general supervision over the administration of its business and affairs, subject to the 
direction of the Board of Commissioners.  The Secretary, who is the Chief Executive Officer, shall be 
charged with the management of the affairs of the Authority. 
 
 The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept under his/her supervision the records of the 
Authority including a record of the meetings of the Board of Commissioners and a record of all votes, 
and shall also keep or cause to be kept under his/her supervision a record of the proceedings and 



CHA Bylaws Page 2 

actions of the Authority in a journal of proceedings to be kept for such purpose, and shall perform all 
duties incident to his/her office.  He/She shall keep or cause to be kept under his/her supervision in safe 
custody the seal of the Authority and shall have power to affix such seal to all contracts and instruments 
authorized to be executed by the Board of Commissioners.  He/She shall have care and custody of all 
funds of the Authority and shall deposit or cause same to be deposited in the name of the Authority in 
such bank or banks as the Board of Commissioners may select.  He/She shall keep or cause to be kept 
under his/her supervision regular books of account showing receipts and expenditures and shall render 
to the Board of Commissioners an account of all transactions and of the financial condition of the 
Authority.  He/She shall give such bond for the faithful performance of his/her duties as the Board of 
Commissioners may designate. 
 
 In the absence of the Secretary, or his/her inability to act, the Board of Commissioners may by 
resolution appoint (from the Board of Commissioners) a Secretary who shall have all the powers, duties 
and responsibilities of the Secretary for the period designated in said resolution. 
 
 Section 5.   Additional Duties.  The officers of the Authority shall perform such other duties 
and functions as may from time to time be required by appropriate resolution of the Board of 
Commissioners, the By-Laws or the rules and regulations of the Authority. 
 
 Section 6.   Election or Appointment.  The Chair and Vice-Chair shall be elected at the annual 
meeting of the Authority from among Commissioners of the Authority, and shall hold office for one year 
or until their successors are elected and qualified.  In case of the absence or incapacity of both the Chair 
and the Vice-Chair, the other Commissioners of the Authority may elect an Acting Chair to serve during 
the period of absence or incapacity of the Chair and Vice-Chair. 
 
 The Secretary shall be appointed by the Board of Commissioners.  Any person appointed to fill 
the office of Secretary, or any vacancy therein, shall have such term as fixed by the Board of 
Commissioners. 
 
 Section 7.   Vacancies.  Should the office of the Chair or Vice-Chair become vacant, the Board 
of Commissioners shall elect a successor from among its membership at the next meeting, and such 
election shall be for the unexpired term of said office.  When the office of Secretary becomes vacant, 
the Board of Commissioners shall appoint a successor as provided in Section 6 of this Article. 
 
 Section 8.   Additional Personnel.  The Authority may from time to time by and through the 
Board of Commissioners, employ such personnel including an Chief Executive Officer as it deems 
necessary to the exercise of its powers.  The selection and compensation of all personnel, other than the 
Chief Executive Officer, shall be made by the Chief Executive Officer subject to review by the Board of 
Commissioners. 
 

ARTICLE III – MEETINGS 
 
 Section 1.   Annual Meeting.  The Annual Meeting of the said date shall be the third Tuesday 
of July at 5:30 P.M. of each year, at the Regular meeting place of the Board, or at such other place as the 
Board may from time to time designate. 
 



CHA Bylaws Page 3 

 Section 2.   Regular Meeting.  Regular meetings of the Board shall be held with notice at 5:30 
o’clock P.M. on the third Tuesday of each month.  In the event a day of regular meeting shall be on a 
legal holiday, said meeting shall be held on the next succeeding secular day. 
 
 Section 3.   Special Meetings.  The Chair of the Authority may, when he/she deems it 
necessary, and shall, upon the written request of two members of the Board of Commissioners, call a 
special meeting of the Authority for the purpose of transacting any business designated in the call.  The 
call of a special meeting may be delivered to each member of the Authority or may be mailed to the 
business or home address of each member of the Authority at least two days prior to the date of such 
special meeting.  At such special meeting, no business shall be considered other than as designated by 
the call.  
 
 Section 4.   Quorum.  The powers of the Authority shall be vested in the Board of 
Commissioners.  Three Commissioners shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of conducting its 
business and exercising its powers and for all other purposes.  Action may be taken by the Authority only 
upon a vote of the majority (3) of the Commissioners (5). 
 
 Section 5.   Order of Business.  At the regular and annual meetings of the Authority the 
following shall be the order of business: 
 

1. Roll call 
2. Approval and adjustment of the agenda 
3. Reading and approval of the minutes of the previous meeting 
4. Resolutions and communications 
5. Report of the Secretary 
6. Comments from Commissioners and visitors 
7. Adjournment 

 
 Section 6.   Manner of Voting.  Action may be taken by the Board of Commissioners by 
resolution or motion, upon an affirmative vote of a majority (3) of the Commissioners (5).  The vote 
upon a resolution shall be taken by roll call, and the “yes” or “no” vote of each member shall be entered 
in the journal.  A voice vote may be taken upon a motion, but if any member may so request, the “yes” 
or “no” vote of each member shall be entered in the journal.  In case of elections, the vote may be by 
ballot. 
 

 
 Section 7.   Code of Conduct. 

 
 

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR COMMISSIONERS 
  

The objective of the Code of Conduct is to encourage professional performance by housing commissioners.  
The Code describes objectives which, when accepted and followed, will help to foster a beneficial 
relationship between the commissioners, staff, and those they serve. 

 

A public housing commissioner shall be bound by the following pledge: 
 

1. I pledge myself to act in a professional manner while serving as a Housing Commissioner.  
 



CHA Bylaws Page 4 

2. I pledge to view my service on the Housing Commission as an opportunity to serve my community, my 
state, and my nation because I support the objectives of providing a decent, safe and sanitary home 
and a suitable living environment for every American family. 

 
3. I pledge that I recognize that my responsibilities are to serve in this capacity as a government official, a 

community leader, and an advocate for the Commission, its collective programs and objectives. 
 
4. I pledge myself to seek and maintain an equitable, honorable and cooperative association with fellow 

public housing officials.  
  
5. I pledge to try to make decisions in terms of the most economical and efficient method toward and the 

best interests of all citizens, particularly those of low and moderate income.  Decisions will provide an 
equal opportunity to all citizens regardless of race, color, sex, religion, familial status, age, disability, or 
national origin. 

 
6. I will recognize that my responsibility is a policy-making role and not to make the day-to-day 

management decisions of the Authority. 
 
7. I pledge to refuse to represent special interests or partisan politics or to use this Commission for 

personal gain or for the gain of friends or supporters.   
 
8. I pledge that I shall not receive, directly or indirectly, any fee, rebate, commission, discount, gratuity, or 

any other benefit whether monetary or otherwise for the proper professional discharge of my duties, 
except authorized established expenses and other benefits. 

 
9.  Decisions will be reached after discussion in open or closed session as appropriate.  Once voted upon 

by a majority of Commissioners, I will abide by the decision.  
 
10. I will recognize that authority is vested with the whole commission assembled in meetings and that the 

powers of the commission shall be vested with the commissioners thereof in office. 
 
11. I pledge to support and protect authority personnel in the performance of their duties.   I will support 

the Chief Executive Officer in his or her choice of hiring and handling personnel without involvement by 
the commission. 

 
12. I pledge to refer complaints to the Chief Executive Officer, and only after the failure of administrative 

solution will pursue such matters with the Chair.  
 
13. I pledge to observe laws and regulations pertaining to the commission.  
 
14. I pledge to respect the limited intent and scope of executive session and respect privileged 

communications from executive session and other sources for the privacy of the personnel and clients 
with whom we are involved. 

 
15. I pledge to make diligent use of the time of the commission as a whole and to faithfully attend all 

meetings barring unforeseen conflicts in which case I shall promptly notify the Chair or their designee.  
 
16. I pledge myself to comply with the rules and regulations and principles of this Code of Conduct. 



CHA Bylaws Page 5 

ARTICLE IV – AMENDMENTS 
 

 Section 1.   Amendments to the By-Laws.  The By-Laws of the Authority may be amended with 
the approval of at least three of the Commissioners of the Authority at a regular or a special meeting. 

 
Except by unanimous consent of all the Commissioners, no proposed amendment to the By-

Laws shall be voted upon until the same has been reduced to writing, filed with the Secretary, and read 
at the regular meeting immediately preceding the meeting at which the same is voted upon. 

 
ARTICLE V – NEPOTISM 

 
Employment of the immediate family members of a Commissioner or members of their 

household is prohibited.  The “immediate family” includes spouse, child, sibling, parent, grandparent, 
father-in-law, mother-in-law, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, grandchild, and any person residing in the 
same household. 
 

 
************************************************ 

 
 
 



Housing Authority of the City of Columbia, Missouri 
201 Switzler Street, Columbia MO 65203 
Office: (573) 443-2556  Fax: (573) 443-0051  TTY: (800) 735-2966  www.ColumbiaHA.com 

Department Source:  CEO 
To:  CHA Board of Commissioners  
From:  CEO & Staff 
CHA Board of Commissioners Meeting Date:  May 8, 2025 
Re: Resolution 2984: Authorizing the Incumbency Certificate of CHA Affordable Housing Development, LLC for 
the Park Avenue Apartments Project and Associated Partnership and Associated Limited Liability Company 
Resolution 

Approval of Resolution 2984 Authorizes the Incumbency Certificate of CHA Affordable Housing 
Development, LLC for the Park Avenue Apartments Project and Associated Partnership and Associated 
Limited Liability Company Resolution.  Approval of this resolution is a part of meeting requirements 
associated with closing on the Park Avenue Apartments project. 

The proposed resolution includes an incumbency certificate certifying the CHA Board and Staff that will 
execute documents on behalf of CHA Affordable Housing Development, LLC for which the Columbia Housing 
Authority of the City of Columbia is the sole member.  

The Associated Partnership and Associated Limited Liability Company Resolution authorize Randy Cole, Chief 
Executive Officer and Bob Hutton, Board Chair, both of the Columbia Housing Authority to enter into a 
development agreement with the Park Avenue Housing Development Group, LP to develop and execute any 
related documents of the Park Avenue Apartments.  

Approve the limited liability company resolution of CHA Affordable Housing Development, LLC. 

Executive Summary 

Discussion 

Recommended Commission Action 



Incumbency Certificate – PARK AVENUE HOUSING GP, LLC 

CERTIFICATE FOR 

CHA AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT, LLC 

MAY 8, 2025 

I, the undersigned, RANDALL COLE, do hereby certify as follows: 

1. I am the CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER of the HOUSING AUTHORITY
OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA, MISSOURI (“Housing Authority”), the sole member of 
CHA AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a Missouri limited liability 
company (“Developer”).  

2. Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a true, correct, and complete copy of the action
by written consent adopted by the Member of the Developer, dated as of May 8, 2025 
(“Consent”). The Consent has not been amended or revoked and is now in full force and 
effect. 

3. The Developer is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under
the laws of the State of Missouri. Attached hereto as Exhibit B is a Certificate of Good 
Standing for the Developer issued by the Missouri Secretary of State. 

4. Attached hereto as Exhibit C is a true and complete copy of the Articles of
Organization of the Developer, which has not been amended to date. 

5. Attached hereto as Exhibit D is a true and correct copy of the Operating
Agreement of the Developer, which has not been amended to date. 

6. The persons named in Exhibit E are the duly appointed officers of the Housing
Authority, holding the office in Exhibit E set forth opposite his or her name, and the signature 
set forth opposite his or her name on Exhibit E is his or her genuine signature. Said officer 
is authorized to act on behalf of the Housing Authority, for itself and on behalf of the 
Developer. 

7. This certificate is delivered to Nationwide Affordable Housing Fund 66 – Red
Stone Equity Fund – 100, LP, a Delaware limited partnership, Red Stone Equity Manager 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Affordable Housing Fund III-H LLC, a Missouri 
limited liability company, Applegate & Thorne-Thomsen, P.C., Housing Authority of the 
City of Columbia, Missouri, Missouri Housing Development Commission, Legacy Bank & 
Trust Company, Polsinelli, P.C., Rosenblum Goldenhersh, P.C., and First American Title 
Insurance Company (collectively, the “Reliance Parties”). The Reliance Parties and their 
respective members, managers, partners, officers, directors, successors, and assigns are 
entitled to rely on this certificate. 

Resolution 2984



Incumbency Certificate – PARK AVENUE HOUSING GP, LLC 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Certificate for the 
Partnership as of the date set forth above. 

 

     
            RANDALL COLE 

  
   



Incumbency Certificate – PARK AVENUE HOUSING GP, LLC 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Resolutions 
 

[SEE ATTACHED] 

  



Incumbency Certificate – PARK AVENUE HOUSING GP, LLC 

CHA AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT, LLC 
a Missouri limited liability company 

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY RESOLUTION 
 

May 8, 2025 
 
 HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA, MISSOURI (“Member”), 
being the sole member of CHA AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a Missouri 
limited liability company (“Developer”), in its capacity as sole member the Developer, hereby adopts 
the following resolutions: 

RESOLVED, that the Developer be and it hereby is authorized and directed 
to enter into a Development Agreement, as developer, with the PARK AVENUE 
HOUSING DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LP, a Missouri limited partnership 
(“Partnership”) for the development of a 79-unit multifamily housing development 
commonly to be known as Park Avenue Apartments in the City of Columbia, Missouri 
(the “Affordable Housing Development”), to provide for necessary real estate 
development services in connection with the development of the Affordable Housing 
Development; and  

  RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Developer be and is authorized and directed 
to execute that certain Development Agreement effective as of May 1, 2025, and any 
and all guarantees and indemnifications necessary to facilitate the development of the 
Affordable Housing Development; and  

 RESOLVED FURTHER, that either one of Bob Hutton or Randall Cole, the 
Board Chair and the Chief Executive Officer, respectively, of the Housing Authority, 
is authorized and directed to execute for and on behalf of the Housing Authority for 
and on behalf of the Developer all agreements and documents and to take all action 
necessary to facilitate the development of the Affordable Housing Development; and  

  RESOLVED FURTHER, that these Resolutions are intended to be and may 
be relied upon by any person or entity involved in any one or more of the actions 
comprising the transaction.  

[the remainder of the page has been intentionally left blank – signature page to follow] 

  



Incumbency Certificate – PARK AVENUE HOUSING GP, LLC 

 The undersigned has executed this Limited Liability Company Resolution as of the date first 
mentioned herein. 

MEMBER: 
 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 
COLUMBIA, MISSOURI 
 
By:         

Randall Cole, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 



Incumbency Certificate – PARK AVENUE HOUSING GP, LLC 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Certificate of Good Standing 

[SEE ATTACHED] 



Incumbency Certificate – PARK AVENUE HOUSING GP, LLC 

EXHIBIT C 

Articles of Organization 

[SEE ATTACHED]



Incumbency Certificate – PARK AVENUE HOUSING GP, LLC 

EXHIBIT D 

Operating Agreement 
 

[SEE ATTACHED] 
 

 

 



Incumbency Certificate – PARK AVENUE HOUSING GP, LLC 

EXHIBIT E 

Incumbent Office Signature 

BOB HUTTON Chair of the Board of 
Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority 

___________________ 

ROBIN WENNEKER Vice-Chair of the Board of 
Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority 

___________________ 

RANDALL COLE Chief Executive Officer of the 
Housing Authority 

___________________ 

 

4914-3742-9304, v. 2 
























	CHA-Board-Agenda 2025-05-8
	R-2983m Park Avenue - Incumbency Certificate for CHA Memo
	R-2983 Park Avenue - Incumbency Certificate for CHA .3
	CERTIFICATE FOR
	HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA, MISSOURI
	MAY 8, 2025
	EXHIBIT A
	Resolutions
	EXHIBIT B

	R-2984m Park Avenue - Incumbency Certificate for CHA Aff. Housing Development Memo
	R-2984 Park Avenue - Incumbency Certificate for Developer .2
	CERTIFICATE FOR
	CHA Affordable Housing Development, LLC
	MAY 8, 2025
	EXHIBIT A
	Resolutions
	EXHIBIT B




